

Committee of the Whole
June 10, 2015

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Room 400, City Hall
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Wednesday, June 10, 2015
2:09 p.m.

PRESENT:

COUNCIL PRESIDENT DARRELL L. CLARKE
COUNCILWOMAN CINDY BASS
COUNCILWOMAN JANNIE L. BLACKWELL
COUNCILWOMAN BLONDELL REYNOLDS BROWN
COUNCILMAN W. WILSON GOODE, JR.
COUNCILMAN WILLIAM K. GREENLEE
COUNCILMAN BOBBY HENON
COUNCILMAN KENYATTA JOHNSON
COUNCILMAN CURTIS JONES, JR.
COUNCILMAN ED NEILSON
COUNCILMAN DENNIS O'BRIEN
COUNCILMAN DAVID OH
COUNCILWOMAN MARIA D. QUINONES-SANCHEZ
COUNCILMAN MARK SQUILLA
COUNCILWOMAN MARIAN B. TASCO

BILLS: 150162, 150163, 150164, 150165,
150166, 150167, 150438, 150471,
150531, 150533, 150534, 150535

RESOLUTIONS: 150179

1 - - -

2 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Good
3 afternoon, everyone. Sorry to be a little
4 late. But you know, as we wind up, things
5 get a little confusing mostly on our part,
6 so we apologize for that.

7 This is a Public Hearing of the
8 Committee of the Whole Regarding Bills
9 Number 150162, 150163, 150164, 150165,
10 150166, 150167, 150438, 150471, 150531,
11 150533, 150534 and 150535 and Resolution
12 Number 150179.

13 We want to make one notation. The
14 following bills and resolutions are being
15 held at the request of the sponsor: Bill
16 No. 150166, 150438, 150471 and Resolution
17 150179.

18 Ms. Lewis, would you please read the
19 titles of the bills and resolution.

20 MS. LEWIS: Bill No. 150162: An
21 Ordinance to adopt a Capital Program for the
22 six Fiscal Years 2016-2021 inclusive.

23 Bill No. 150163: An Ordinance to adopt
24 a Fiscal 2016 Capital Budget.

1 Bill No. 150164: An Ordinance adopting
2 the Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2016.

3 Bill No. 150165: An Ordinance amending
4 Section 19-1801 of The Philadelphia Code,
5 entitled "Authorization of Tax," to further
6 authorize the Board of Education of the
7 School District of Philadelphia to impose a
8 tax on real estate within the City of
9 Philadelphia to provide for an increase in
10 the tax, and making technical changes, all
11 under certain terms and conditions.

12 Bill No. 150166: An Ordinance amending
13 Section 19-1806 of The Philadelphia Code,
14 entitled "Authorization of Realty Use and
15 Occupancy Tax," to further authorize the
16 Board of Education of the School District of
17 Philadelphia to impose a tax on the use or
18 occupancy of real estate within the School
19 District of Philadelphia, under certain
20 terms and conditions.

21 Bill No. 150167: An Ordinance amending
22 Chapter 19-1500 of The Philadelphia Code,
23 entitled "Wage and Net Profits Tax," by
24 revising certain tax rates, under certain

1 terms and conditions.

2 Bill No. 150438: An Ordinance amending
3 Section 19-1806 of The Philadelphia Code,
4 entitled "Authorization of Realty Use and
5 Occupancy Tax," to further authorize the
6 Board of Education of the School District of
7 Philadelphia to impose a tax on the use or
8 occupancy of real estate within the School
9 District of Philadelphia and to set the rate
10 for such tax and making technical changes,
11 all under certain terms and conditions.

12 Bill No. 150471: An Ordinance
13 authorizing the transfer in appropriations
14 for Fiscal Year 2016 within the General
15 Fund, from the Department of Human Services
16 - Prisons to the Office of Housing and
17 Community Development, to support
18 landscaping and lot-cleaning jobs in the
19 Philadelphia Re-Entry Employment Program for
20 Returning Citizens, under certain terms and
21 conditions.

22 Bill No. 150531: An Ordinance
23 authorizing the Director of Commerce to
24 enter into Use and Lease Agreements between

1 the City and each of the airlines servicing
2 Philadelphia International Airport, under
3 certain terms and conditions.

4 Bill No. 150533: An Ordinance amending
5 Chapter 19-1300 of The Philadelphia Code,
6 entitled "Real Estate Taxes," by
7 establishing a tax rate for City real estate
8 tax; all under certain terms and conditions.

9 Bill No. 150534: An Ordinance amending
10 Chapter 19-1200 of The Philadelphia Code,
11 entitled "Parking Tax," by establishing a
12 rate of taxation on parking transactions for
13 Fiscal Year 2016 and thereafter.

14 Bill No. 150535: An Ordinance amending
15 Section 19-1806 of The Philadelphia Code,
16 entitled "Authorization of Realty Use and
17 Occupancy Tax," to further authorize the
18 Board of Education of the School District of
19 Philadelphia to impose a tax on the use or
20 occupancy of real estate within the School
21 District of Philadelphia and to set the rate
22 for such tax, and making technical changes;
23 all under certain terms and conditions.

24 And Resolution No. 150179: A Resolution

1 providing for the approval by the Council of
2 the City of Philadelphia of a Revised Five
3 Year Financial Plan for the City of
4 Philadelphia covering Fiscal Years 2016
5 through 2020, and incorporating proposed
6 changes with respect to Fiscal Year 2015,
7 which is to be submitted by the Mayor to the
8 Pennsylvania Intergovernmental Cooperation
9 Authority (the "Authority") pursuant to the
10 Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement,
11 authorized by an ordinance of this Council
12 approved by the Mayor on January 3, 1992
13 (Bill No. 1563-A), by and between the City
14 and the Authority.

15 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you,
16 Ms. Lewis. Thank you.

17 We will not take testimony from the
18 Administration. Having given the general
19 public various opportunities to consider the
20 measures before this body, constitute
21 proposed measures by the Administration, we
22 will go into Public Testimony on Bills No.
23 150531, 150533 and 150534 and 150535 in
24 which was introduced June 3, 2015.

1 Let me make one note. We have a number
2 of members here from organized labor. This
3 part of the hearing is only on the City's
4 and School District budget. We will
5 entertain any public testimony with respects
6 to the other legislation, i.e., also known
7 as the airport. So, you know that what's
8 currently going on, there's a lot of back
9 and forth between the various parties. And
10 hopefully, we will have some resolution by
11 the time we start the process on that
12 particular measure.

13 So, stay tuned. We will hopefully get
14 to that measure as soon as possible. For
15 this point in time, we are going to only
16 hear testimony on the Budget and the School
17 District Budget. Thank you very much.

18 First up, Mr. Arrafe? Mr -- I'm
19 butchering this name, I know, Tsegaye
20 Arrafe? Not here?

21 Brian Lipkin and Harvey Spear.

22 (Witnesses approach witness table.)

23 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Before we
24 start the testimony, we are going to ask

1 that you give remarks within the
2 three-minute timeline to make sure we can
3 accommodate as many people as possible.

4 Thank you.

5 Thank you very much for being here. I
6 know your preference is not to be here, but
7 thank you for coming down anyway. Thank you.

8 Just please state your name for the
9 record.

10 MR. SPEAR: Good afternoon,
11 Councilmembers and Council President. My
12 name is Harvey Spear.

13 MR. ARRAFE: My name is Tsegaye Arrafe
14 with ABM Parking Services.

15 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: You can
16 please proceed with your testimony.

17 MR. SPEAR: Good afternoon, everybody.
18 My name, as I said, is Harvey Spear. I'm
19 President of EZ Park Incorporated. We're a
20 local parking company. I'm also a member of
21 the Philadelphia Parking Association.

22 I've been here before for this same
23 occasion and for other instances. I am
24 involved in many nonprofits such as HAPCO,

1 Old City District, River West Condos. To
2 begin with, this happens to be my least
3 favorite thing to do. There is nothing I
4 enjoy less than testifying against business
5 tax increases, new regulations that impact
6 business and fee increases. Unfortunately,
7 this is the sixth year out of seven that I
8 find myself testifying. I dislike this
9 because I'd rather be involved working in my
10 own business or creating new business here
11 in Philadelphia.

12 Secondly, I dislike public testifying
13 about all the high taxes and negative
14 business atmosphere that exist in
15 Philadelphia. I say this because of my
16 position in the business community managing
17 a 65-year-old business. We try to convince
18 business leaders to relocate to Philadelphia
19 or start new businesses here, so increasing
20 taxes again would be very counterproductive.

21 Parking is an important service.
22 Restaurants, hospitals, hotels need us in
23 order to provide reasonable parking for
24 their clients, employees, et cetera. In an

1 effort to convey how serious this issue is
2 but not sound overwhelmingly negative about
3 the business climate, I put together a list
4 to make my point.

5 Even before the last seven years of tax
6 increases, parking was always the highest
7 taxed industry in the city. 2007
8 Philadelphia increased taxes and fees that
9 impact parking 33 percent increase to
10 parking tax, 3 percent increase to real
11 estate tax, 100 percent increase to water
12 and sewer bills, 8 percent real estate tax
13 and a 25 percent use and occupancy tax.

14 Many of these taxes, parking companies
15 pay a hundred percent. Use and occupancy
16 tax is split between offices and tenants and
17 offices. We pay for -- we pay for a hundred
18 percent occupancy whether our lots are
19 opened or closed.

20 Developers are choosing not to add or
21 even replace parking spaces in developments.
22 This is a loss for the City in jobs, taxes
23 and services for businesses that we rely
24 on -- that rely on parking. There is still

1 huge amounts of taxes that continue to go
2 uncollected in Philadelphia because of lack
3 of enforcement. Even though we've been
4 working with the Administration for three
5 years.

6 As Vice Chairman of Old City District,
7 we would like you to know that we collect
8 90 percent of taxes due. I think the City
9 collects somewhere around 60 to 70 percent.
10 This tax increase gives further advantage
11 and incentive to those who do not pay their
12 taxes. This again sends a message that our
13 City is not a friendly place to do business.

14 If real estate, use and occupancy taxes
15 are also increased, parking will get
16 walloped with three major increasing costs.
17 This again will have a negative impact on
18 jobs that citizens of our City desperately
19 need. Collectively, the parking industry
20 employs about 3,000 people. There may be
21 again a need for layoffs in our industry.

22 The money raised could easily be
23 replaced by the Parking Authority raising
24 meter rates to \$3 per hour. This would be a

1 fraction of the off-street parking charges
2 and would still be half of what other cities
3 charge. Meter customers are not charged
4 parking tax, use and occupancy tax, business
5 privilege tax nor have utilities or
6 insurance to pay. These dollars are already
7 slated to fund the schools.

8 So in closing, I'd like to say that we
9 would let the public know that my company
10 would have no alternative but to pass these
11 costs to other -- to the consumer. I can't
12 speak for the other parking companies, but
13 right now we are burden with over 50 percent
14 of our income going to taxes and insurance.

15 MR. ARRAFE: Thank you, Steve.

16 My name is Tsegaye Arrafe. I'm the City
17 Operations Manager for ABM Parking Services
18 in Philadelphia. I would like to second the
19 statement that Mr. Harvey presented. And I
20 just wanted to also add a few pointers to
21 the general aspect that he presented.

22 I would like the general public to
23 understand that at the current state, the
24 parking tax is 20 percent already. And on

1 top of that, we pay real estate tax, U&O
2 tax, PBT, NBT, water and sewer fees, parking
3 lot license fee, the state and federal taxes
4 and Center City District taxes in most
5 aspects. So now, the City Council is
6 proposing an increase in three taxes in one
7 year in parking and U&O and real estate
8 taxes.

9 So while all the important points that
10 Steve mentioned encapsulates what we're
11 trying to say, the suggestion that we're
12 coming up also and Steve had mentioned it,
13 we would like to give the City to look into
14 alternative tax revenue generating aspects
15 even within the parking industry. So, our
16 suggestion is the business tax increases,
17 make the City less competitive and continue
18 to drive good jobs and honest business out
19 of the City.

20 We proposal to raise the tax such as if
21 the City was to raise through its Parking
22 Authority the meter parking from \$3 per hour
23 now by \$1 an hour, that will see a
24 \$4 million increase in revenue to the City

1 and raise permit parking fees, that would
2 look at about 3.5 million increase in
3 revenue to the City. And also, if the City
4 were to enforce its own existing tax rules
5 on parking and it enforces it across the
6 industry, not only on those of us that are
7 paying our taxes, that will result in
8 \$4 million revenue increase.

9 And also, if the City were to go after
10 prior years unpaid taxes, it would also
11 generate about 20 million. So, we are
12 looking at about 31 million that the City
13 can generate in -- as an alternative to
14 raising the taxes to -- on top of what we
15 are paying at 20 percent already.

16 So parking is taxed too high. It's a
17 lost battle, but it is too much of an
18 advantage. Encourages developers to limited
19 parking when building and helps other
20 businesses that are dependent upon parking
21 such as tourism, retail, office, culture, et
22 cetera.

23 Thank you.

24 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.

1 Sir, do you have written testimony
2 particularly about some of the other issues
3 with respects to possibilities and
4 alternatives to parking taxes?

5 Is that in written form?

6 MR. SPEAR: We -- we will share that
7 with you. We have numbers here.

8 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Okay. I know
9 we have had some conversations in the past.
10 And believe me, as much as you don't like
11 being here discussing a tax issue, we really
12 don't like being here to have to talk about
13 this, also. It's not something that is very
14 easy for us. But, you know, we have this
15 annual issue with respects to coming up with
16 solutions to educate our children. And, you
17 know, we are where we are.

18 But I would like to talk to you guys
19 about -- and I'm sure a number of other
20 members about alternative issues.

21 MR. SPEAR: Yeah. We'd like to do that.
22 And I have to say, I have a granddaughter
23 entering the Philadelphia school system that
24 wants to see better schools. They live in

1 Center City.

2 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: I understand.

3 MR. SPEAR: We're hoping we could come
4 up with alternatives. Because right now if
5 you want to build a garage in the City,
6 neighborhoods are insisting on us providing
7 parking when we build a project. And now we
8 can't. And more and more taxes and
9 insurance rates, it's almost impossible
10 today.

11 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: I understand.

12 MR. ARRAFE: On a personal note, I would
13 also like to add the School District issues
14 and the budgetary constraints are dear to my
15 heart. I have a five-year-old son starting
16 at Lee Elementary School --

17 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Right.

18 MR. ARRAFE: -- this September. So yes,
19 I would support the City in its efforts.
20 But we just trying to come up with
21 alternatives to that parking tax.

22 Thank you.

23 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: I understand.

24 Thank you for your testimony. We will

1 follow up. Thank you.

2 Toni Bamon, Kenae Bamon, Shikomba -- oh,
3 Madam Shikomba. I'm sorry.

4 Madam Shikomba here? Is Toni Bamon
5 here?

6 Come on up. Good afternoon.

7 (Panel approaches witness table.)

8 Good afternoon. How are you?

9 MS. SHIKOMBA: My name is Madeline
10 Shikomba, S-h-i-k-o-m-b-a. I represent the
11 North of Washington Avenue Coalition. I'm
12 here regarding Bill No. 150533.

13 The proposed real estate increase is for
14 4 percent for 2016 and raised to 5 percent
15 the next year thereafter. Who is going to
16 benefit from these increased taxes?
17 Certainly not the children or people of
18 color or low income or moderate income
19 people. This attempt to use the school as a
20 need to increase school taxes is another way
21 of gentrification. The people who are hurt
22 the most are the parents of the kids who
23 will not even benefit or will benefit the
24 least or will not even be around to be able

1 to accept these benefits because they going
2 to lose their home with this tax increase
3 being put in place.

4 Senior citizens will be seriously hurt,
5 especially those who don't even qualify for
6 the tax increase and even that impacts upon
7 them like anything else. Even though I get
8 LOOP, this increase will quadruple my taxes
9 from \$1 254 to \$5,784. Where you expect me
10 to get that kind of money?

11 We won't even be able to afford to pay
12 the taxes. We will lose our homes to
13 sheriff sale and what's left? Those who are
14 not paying taxes, those who are receiving
15 tax abatement. Their children will benefit.
16 Until this system of real estate taxes are
17 more equitable and we object most vehemently
18 to increase the taxes of senior citizens and
19 long time owner residents and unabated
20 residents.

21 Retain the city -- what I ask for you to
22 do and ask for you to remove the school
23 portion from this tax abatement. Retain
24 only the City portion of the tax abatement.

1 If you don't want to do that and if you
2 don't want to eliminate the 100 percent,
3 10-year tax abatement, then may I suggest
4 you do this. Reduce the tax abatement at
5 least 10 percent per year for the next 10
6 years or reduce the tax abatement down to 5
7 years to reduce the 20 percent per year.

8 Even Councilman Goode had presented this
9 to you two years ago, and I presented this
10 seven years ago. But you haven't done
11 anything about it. If you don't want to do
12 that, then I ask you to increase -- at least
13 increase the tax on the land portion of the
14 abated properties. You can do something
15 like that so that you can reduce our taxes.

16 How come all these people with tax
17 abatement are not paying no taxes? They
18 need to be put on the land portion if
19 anything else.

20 Secondly, the City still shows a
21 deficit. Again, they try to squeeze as much
22 as they can out of those who can least
23 afford and give as much as to those who are
24 already well off. When is this disparity

1 going to end. You are asking them to foot
2 the bill to the newbies. And I mean the
3 newbies, those coming in here and getting
4 all these tax abatements. They are only
5 here for a short while. They will be out of
6 here as soon as the tax abatements over
7 unless they can find another tax abated
8 property or they go to another town.

9 I'm tired of just blindly stand by how
10 much these people supposed to be bringing in
11 here. You can't show me in your budget how
12 much the newbies have been bringing in here
13 any more than I can show you just how much
14 we been repaying to you, too. I'm tired of
15 this. Okay.

16 I'm tired of the fact that our schools
17 have been closed. And schools have been
18 closed, have been closed by people of color.
19 They are the ones who close -- whose schools
20 have been closed, low income neighborhood
21 and marginal incomes.

22 I don't want to give NRC -- I'm a tell
23 you straight up. I don't want to give SRC
24 any more money to squander. All they do is

1 close schools in low income address and add
2 more misery to the already stressed
3 population. We are not getting the benefit
4 of the bucks you are asking us to invest.
5 We have been investing for years with no
6 beneficial return.

7 For all the millions of dollars given to
8 SRC that have shown regarding our children,
9 especially ones of color, nothing. It has
10 continued since they were took office in
11 2001. What notable improvements have they
12 scored? None. I don't want any more of my
13 money or anybody else money going down the
14 toilet. The charter schools are no better.
15 I am tired of this. Tired of our kids not
16 benefitting. Okay.

17 Might I suggest that -- before I finish,
18 let us get to Harrisburg. They are part of
19 the problem. And the only way I am going to
20 contribute money to these school is one, we
21 get rid of the SRC. And two, there has to
22 be some accountability. I want an audit of
23 these schools and the charter schools, okay.
24 And that's what I think should be happening.

1 Thank you.

2 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you for
3 your testimony.

4 - - -

5 (Applause)

6 - - -

7 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Excuse me.

8 Are you all -- excuse me, are you
9 testifying, sir?

10 MR. CARRINGTON: Yes.

11 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Please state
12 your name for the record. Proceed.

13 MR. CARRINGTON: Good afternoon,
14 everyone. My name -- can you hear me?

15 My name is Kelvin Carrington. And I'm
16 also a member of the North Washington Avenue
17 Coalition and a life long City resident.

18 I'd like to say is I'd like to offer an
19 alternative to the taxing plan as it's been
20 put into place. Because we were assured
21 years ago that what they did have to raise
22 it, it would be -- if the assessments have
23 to go up, it would be off set by the millage
24 and that didn't happen.

1 And my concern is I live in what they
2 now call Graduate Hospital area. I was born
3 there, and I never left 19146 ZIP code. I
4 was there when it was nice in the '50s and
5 '60s. I was there in the '60s, '70 and '80s
6 when it went downhill and became drug
7 infested.

8 I bought my home for \$5,000. I got
9 lucky. My home is not worth \$125,000. And
10 if I was to move into a house today, I
11 couldn't buy a house -- I couldn't afford a
12 125,000-dollar house. Now anybody walking
13 into -- moving into Philadelphia or just
14 moving into a new home, if you already know
15 how much it cost, you know it's going to be
16 250, 300, 400,000. And you can figure out
17 what your tax will be. Then you know you
18 can afford it.

19 I think that fair market value is a
20 misnomer. Because we got houses all over
21 our neighborhood that are brand new and they
22 falling apart already. They not worth no
23 \$400,000. It's just a ploy to reverse the
24 diversification of a neighborhood.

1 My neighborhood is full of young white
2 folks, I mean, like 85 percent. So, I don't
3 see any diversity there. And the way to fix
4 this is people that bought they homes years
5 ago should be taxed accordingly and not
6 because somebody next door and down the
7 street pay \$400,000. That's totally unfair.

8 And I agree. We don't need these
9 abatements. Either you can afford the house
10 or you can't afford the house. And if you
11 can't afford -- if a thousand people can't
12 afford a \$400,000 house, they won't charge
13 \$400,000 for that house. And it didn't cost
14 them that much to build it. They using
15 non-union labor. They using cheap labor.
16 They people in from all over the world.

17 I got a neighbor who within a year, they
18 had to come back out three different times
19 to work on a second-story bay window. What
20 kind of 400,000-dollar house is that?

21 Thank you.

22 - - -

23 (Applause)

24 - - -

1 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you for
2 your testimony, sir.

3 MS. JOHNSON: Good afternoon. My name
4 is Laverne Johnson. And I'm also a part of
5 NWAC, North Washington Avenue. And one
6 thing is going on in our neighborhood,
7 currently there's a project in my
8 neighborhood at 2401 Washington Avenue to
9 build a 113 rental units. This developer
10 will not only benefit from a ten-year tax
11 abatement, but the renters won't be
12 contributing any more to the tax base than
13 they already are.

14 How is this project helping the people
15 who live in the area?

16 It doesn't. It simply gives a high-rise
17 building traffic congestion, depravation of
18 light and air to the neighborhood -- to the
19 neighbors, abetting the property and higher
20 population density. How lucky we are.

21 Any job creation is short lived, six
22 months to one year construction jobs, then
23 they are gone. They are no -- there are no
24 long term job developments.

1 The City is now planning on putting on
2 the ballot a measure to create more City
3 agencies. How does the City plan to pay for
4 these new agencies and their employees? Is
5 there any one of these agencies specifically
6 being created to bring in jobs or seek
7 alternative ways to ease the City's
8 financial problems?

9 The mission of the School District of
10 Philadelphia is to provide a high quality
11 education that prepares, ensures and
12 empowers all students to achieve their full
13 intellectual, social potential in order to
14 become long -- life long learners and
15 productive members of society. They are
16 failing to do this.

17 After closing the schools, gave the --
18 they gave the property away to developers
19 for almost nothing, properties that were
20 worth millions. Now I'm being asked to give
21 money to the school system that mismanaged
22 the funding they received.

23 Thank you.

24 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you all

1 very much for your testimony.

2 MS. JOHNSON: Thank you.

3 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thanks for
4 coming in.

5 Call up Susan Gobreski.

6 (Witness approaches witness table.)

7 MS. GOBRESKI: Hello. My name is Susan
8 Gobreski. I am the parent of three children
9 in Philadelphia public schools. I pay real
10 estate tax in the City. I love living in
11 the City, and I'm happy to pay for the
12 privilege to be here. I know that rising
13 taxes can create hardship. It's also true
14 that they are the thing that we do to live
15 in a civilized society and pay for our
16 priorities, and our schools are priorities.

17 I have here an article from last
18 November where we started our school year
19 where one of our schools had \$160 as their
20 entire school supply budget for the year.
21 If the School District of Philadelphia -- if
22 you guys can see it in your hearts and in
23 your political priorities to provide \$85
24 million to the School District this year,

1 \$20 million less, then that would get us up
2 to the point where we were able to provide
3 this one school with \$160 budget. The
4 School District's budget whole is
5 structural. It's because they have rising
6 costs and because of previous one-time
7 grants.

8 We really need our local and state
9 authorities. And I have heard from some
10 staff that they like us to focus on
11 Harrisburg, which is where I would be right
12 now if I wasn't here. We really need City
13 Council and the State to continue to provide
14 more funding for schools. The reasons our
15 schools are in trouble is because we have
16 underfunded them systematically for years.
17 They have had to take out debt. They have
18 had to manage to a low budget, and they're
19 really suffering.

20 My high school daughter is coming down
21 here right now bringing letters from some of
22 her friends that she has written and that
23 they have written asking you guys to help
24 them get what they need in schools. They

1 are looking for expanded science education,
2 art and music. My daughter was so excited
3 this year when she got to take art after
4 having gone several years without it.

5 So, I know that you guys have a lot of
6 priorities to balance, but there are many,
7 many options. And I know that that is part
8 of your job, and I know it's a difficult
9 part of your job. But I am here to beg on
10 behalf of parents and students and teachers
11 who are working very hard, for you guys to
12 actually hit the target of 105 million of
13 solid reliable dollars that are not already
14 expected and counted upon.

15 There is -- you can increase the land
16 tax, there's the property tax, U&O, parking.
17 You can do a soda tax. You guys have --
18 there are sodas around today with a reminder
19 that there are plenty of options. And we
20 want a fair plan that distributes
21 responsibility across multiple sectors.

22 So please, please step up and hit the
23 105 million.

24 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you

1 very much for your testimony.

2 I'm not going to call a recess because I
3 don't want anybody to leave. We're going to
4 take a five-minute break. So please, don't
5 nobody go anywhere.

6 - - -

7 (At this time, a brief break taken.)

8 - - -

9 (Hearing resumes at 2:53 p.m.)

10 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: All right.

11 We are going to start now. We will
12 reconvene. Ask all guests and visitors to
13 please retire behind the rail. Thank you.

14 Thank you. I believe that there have
15 been a number of amendments have been
16 circulated. And the Chair recognizes
17 Councilman Jones for a motion on the
18 amendment to Bill No. 150162.

19 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you.

20 Mr. Chairman, I move that the amendment to
21 Bill No --

22 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Hold on,
23 Councilman. Hold on one second. My
24 mistake. We need to go into the Public

1 Meeting.

2 Thank you very much. This concludes the
3 Public Hearing. We will now go into the
4 Public Meeting.

5 - - -

6 (Public Hearing adjourns and the Public
7 Meeting commences.)

8 - - -

9 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: And the Chair
10 now recognizes Councilman Jones.

11 COUNCILMAN JONES: Again, thank you,
12 Mr. Chairman.

13 I move that the amendment to Bill No.
14 150162 be adopted.

15 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Second.

16 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: It's been
17 moved and properly seconded that the
18 amendment to Bill No. 150162 be adopted.

19 All those in favor say aye?

20 (Chorus of Ayes)

21 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
22 opposed?

23 (None opposed.)

24 Ayes have it. The motion carries.

1 An amendment to Bill No. 150162 has been
2 adopted.

3 Chair again recognizes Councilman Jones
4 for a motion on Bill No. 150162.

5 COUNCILMAN JONES: Mr. Chairman, I move
6 that Bill No. 150162 be reported from this
7 Committee with a favorable recommendation;
8 and further move, that the Rules of Council
9 be suspended to permit first reading of this
10 bill at our next Session of Council.

11 (Duly seconded.)

12 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.
13 It's been moved and properly seconded that
14 Bill No. 150162 be reported from the
15 Committee with a favorable recommendation;
16 and further move, that the Rules of Council
17 be suspended to permit first reading of this
18 bill at the next Session of Council.

19 All those in favor say aye?

20 (Chorus of Ayes)

21 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
22 opposed?

23 (None opposed.)

24 Ayes have it. Motion carries.

1 Bill No. 150162 will be reported from
2 this Committee with a favorable
3 recommendation. And request for Rules of
4 Council be suspended to permit first reading
5 at our next Session of Council.

6 Chair again recognizes Councilman Jones
7 for a motion on the amendment to Bill No.
8 150163.

9 COUNCILMAN JONES: Mr. Chairman, I move
10 that the amendment to Bill No. 150163 be
11 adopted.

12 (Duly seconded.)

13 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.
14 It's been moved and properly second that the
15 amendment to Bill No. 150163 be adopted.

16 All those in favor say aye?

17 (Chorus of Ayes)

18 Those opposed?

19 (None opposed.)

20 Ayes have it. The motion carries.

21 And the amendment to Bill No. 150163 has
22 been adopted.

23 Chair again recognizes Councilman Jones
24 for a motion on Bill No. 150163.

1 COUNCILMAN JONES: Mr. Chairman, I move
2 that Bill No. 150163 be reported from this
3 Committee with a favorable recommendation;
4 and further move that the Rules of Council
5 be suspended to permit first reading of this
6 bill at our next Session of Council.

7 (Duly seconded.)

8 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.
9 It's been moved and properly seconded that
10 the Bill No. 150163 be reported from this
11 Committee with a favorable recommendation;
12 and further move that the Rules of Council
13 be suspended as to permit first reading of
14 this bill at our next Session of Council.

15 All those in favor?

16 (Chorus of Ayes)

17 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
18 opposed?

19 (None opposed.)

20 Ayes have it. Thank you. Motion
21 carries.

22 Bill No. 150163 will be reported from
23 this Committee with a favorable
24 recommendation; and request rules suspension

1 for first reading at next Session of
2 Council.

3 Chair again recognizes Councilman Jones
4 for a motion on the amendment to Bill No.
5 150164.

6 COUNCILMAN JONES: Mr. Chairman, I move
7 that the amendment to Bill No. 150164 be
8 adopted.

9 (Duly seconded.)

10 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: It's been
11 moved and properly seconded that the
12 amendment to Bill No. 150164 be adopted.

13 All those in favor say aye?

14 (Chorus of Ayes)

15 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
16 opposed?

17 (None opposed.)

18 Ayes have it. Motion carries.

19 And the amendment to Bill No. 150164 has
20 been adopted.

21 Chair again recognizes Councilman Jones
22 for a motion on Bill No. 150164 as amended.

23 COUNCILMAN JONES: I move that Bill No.
24 150164 be reported from this Committee with

1 a favorable recommendation; and further move
2 that the Rules of Council be suspended to
3 permit first reading of this bill at our
4 next Session of Council.

5 (Duly seconded.)

6 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.
7 It's been moved and properly seconded that
8 the Bill 150164 be reported out of this
9 Committee with a favorable recommendation;
10 and further move that Rules of Council be
11 suspended to permit first reading of this
12 bill at next session of Council.

13 All those in favor?

14 (Chorus of Ayes)

15 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
16 opposed?

17 (None opposed.)

18 Ayes have it. Motion carries.

19 And Bill No. 150164 will be reported
20 from Committee with a favorable
21 recommendation and rule suspension to allow
22 reading at the next Session of Council.

23 Chair recognizes Councilman Jones for a
24 motion on the amendment to Bill No. 150165.

1 COUNCILMAN JONES: Chairman, I move that
2 the amendment to Bill No. 150165 be adopted.

3 (Duly seconded.)

4 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.
5 It has been moved and properly seconded that
6 the amendment to Bill No. 150165 be adopted.

7 All those in favor, please signify by
8 saying aye?

9 (Chorus of Ayes)

10 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
11 opposed?

12 (None opposed.)

13 Ayes have it. Motion carries.

14 And amendment to Bill No. 150165 has
15 been adopted.

16 Councilman Jones, a motion on Bill No.
17 150165 as amended.

18 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you,
19 Mr. Chairman.

20 Again, I move that the Bill No. 150165
21 be reported from this Committee with a
22 favorable recommendation; and further move
23 that the Rules of Council be suspended to
24 permit first reading of this bill at our

1 next Session of Council.

2 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Can I get a
3 second?

4 (Duly seconded.)

5 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.
6 Where did we leave off?

7 It has been moved and properly seconded
8 that Bill 150165 be reported from this
9 Committee as amended with a favorable
10 recommendation; and further move that the
11 Rules of Council be suspended to permit
12 first reading of this bill at the next
13 session of Council.

14 All those in favor say aye?

15 (Chorus of Ayes)

16 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
17 opposed?

18 (None opposed.)

19 Ayes have it. The motion carries.

20 Bill No. 150165 will be reported from
21 this Committee with a favorable
22 recommendation with rule suspension to allow
23 reading at next session of Council.

24 Chair recognizes Councilman Jones for a

1 motion on Bill No. 150167.

2 COUNCILMAN JONES: I move that Bill No.
3 150167 be -- the amendments to Bill No --
4 no? All right.

5 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: There's no
6 amendment.

7 A motion on 150167 was made. Can I get
8 a second?

9 (Duly seconded.)

10 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.
11 It's been moved an properly seconded that
12 Bill No. 150167 be reported from this
13 Committee with a favorable recommendation;
14 and further move that the Rules of Council
15 be suspended so as to allow first reading at
16 next session of Council.

17 All those in favor?

18 (Chorus of Ayes)

19 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
20 opposed?

21 (None opposed.)

22 Ayes have it. Motion carries.

23 Bill No. 150167 will be reported in
24 Committee with a favorable recommendation,

1 rules suspension to allow first reading at
2 next session of Council.

3 Councilman Jones, motion on Bill No.
4 150533.

5 COUNCILMAN JONES: I move that Bill No.
6 150533 be reported from this Committee with
7 a favorable recommendation; and that the
8 Rules of Council be suspended to allow first
9 reading of this bill at our next Session of
10 Council.

11 (Duly seconded.)

12 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.
13 It's been moved and properly seconded that
14 Bill No. 150533 be reported from this
15 Committee with a favorable recommendation;
16 and further move that the Rules of Council
17 be suspended to permit first reading at the
18 next session of Council.

19 All those in favor say aye?

20 (Chorus of Ayes)

21 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
22 opposed?

23 (None opposed.)

24 Ayes have it. Motion carries.

1 Bill No. 150533 is reported from
2 Committee with favorable recommendation with
3 rules suspension to allow reading at the
4 next session of Council.

5 Chair again recognizes Councilman Jones
6 for a motion on Bill No. 150534.

7 COUNCILMAN JONES: Mr. Chairman, I move
8 that Bill No. 150534 be reported from this
9 Committee with a favorable recommendation;
10 and further move that the Rules of Council
11 be suspended to permit first reading of this
12 bill at our next session of Council.

13 (Duly seconded.)

14 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.
15 It's been moved and properly seconded that
16 Bill No. 150534 be reported from this
17 Committee with favorable recommendation and
18 rules suspension to allow reading at next
19 session of Council.

20 All those in favor say aye?

21 (Chorus of Ayes)

22 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
23 opposed?

24 (None opposed.)

1 Ayes have it. Motion carries.

2 And Bill No. 150534 will be reported
3 from Committee with rules suspension to
4 allow reading at next session of Council.

5 Councilman Jones, please give a motion
6 on 150535.

7 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you,
8 Mr. Chairman.

9 I move the Bill No. 150535 be reported
10 from this Committee with a favorable
11 recommendation; and further move that the
12 Rules of Council be suspended to permit
13 first reading of this bill at our next
14 session of Council.

15 (Duly seconded.)

16 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.
17 It has been moved and properly seconded that
18 Bill No. 150535 be reported from this
19 Committee with a favorable recommendation;
20 and further move that the Rules of Council
21 be suspended to permit first reading of this
22 bill at the next Session of Council.

23 All those in favor say aye?

24 (Chorus of Ayes)

1 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Those
2 opposed?

3 COUNCILMAN OH: Nay.

4 Ayes have it. On this one, Councilman?
5 You want to offer an amendment on this one?
6 Next one?

7 - - -

8 (At this time, a discussion was held off
9 the record.)

10 - - -

11 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Councilman
12 Jones, why don't we start -- 150535.
13 Councilman, let's start over a motion on --
14 not all the way back, just 150535 if we can,
15 all right?

16 COUNCILMAN JONES: The last one?

17 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: 150535.

18 Councilman, can you give me a motion,
19 please, on No. 150535?

20 COUNCILMAN JONES: Okay.

21 Mr. Chairman, I move that Bill No.
22 150535 be reported from this Committee with
23 a favorable recommendation; and further move
24 that the Rules of Council be suspended to

1 permit first reading of this bill at our
2 next session of Council.

3 (Duly seconded.)

4 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Thank you.

5 It's been moved and properly seconded that
6 Bill No. 150535 be reported from this
7 Committee with a favorable recommendation to
8 allow rule suspension to permit first
9 reading of this bill in our next session of
10 Council.

11 All those in favor say aye?

12 (Chorus of Ayes)

13 Those opposed?

14 (None opposed.)

15 Ayes have it. Motion carries.

16 And Bill No. 150535 will be reported
17 from this Committee with a favorable
18 recommendation and a request for rule
19 suspension to allow reading at our next
20 session of Council.

21 That concludes the Public Meeting on the
22 FY16 Operating Capital Budget and School
23 District funding. Thank you all very much.

24 I would like to ask -- we would now

1 ordinarily move into the Committee of the
2 Whole on Bill No. 150531, but there
3 continues to be negotiations between the
4 stakeholders, so I would ask that we take a
5 half an hour recess so we can get the status
6 of those conversations and ask the members
7 still hang around, please.

8 Thank you.

9 - - -

10 (At this time, a brief recess was taken.)

11 - - -

12 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: I want to
13 make an announcement.

14 The Committee on the Whole with respects
15 to Bill No. 150531, also known as the
16 Airport Use and Lease Agreement, will stand
17 in recess until 9:00 a.m. tomorrow morning.

18 (Committee of the Whole adjourned at 3:58
19 p.m.)

C E R T I F I C A T I O N

I, hereby certify that the proceedings and evidence noted are contained fully and accurately in the stenographic notes taken by me in the foregoing matter, and that this is a correct transcript of the same.

ANGELA M. KING, RPR
Court Reporter - Notary Public

(The foregoing certification of this transcript does not apply to any reproduction of the same by any means, unless under the direct control and/or supervision of the certifying reporter.)

Committee of the Whole
June 10, 2015

Page 47

A	agencies 26:3 26:4,5	apart 23:22	4:13,23	3:12,21 4:2	1:10	certifying	11:6,8,13
a.m 45:17	ago 19:9,10	apologize 2:6	Avenue 17:11	4:12,22 5:4	bucks 21:4	46:19	11:18 12:16
abated 19:14	22:21 24:5	Applause	22:16 25:5	5:9,14 6:13	budget 2:24	cetera 9:24	13:4,5,13
20:7	agree 24:8	22:5 24:23	25:8	17:12 20:2	3:2 7:4,16	14:22	13:17,19,21
abatement	Agreement	apply 46:16	aye 31:19	30:18,21	7:17 20:11	Chair 30:16	13:24 14:3
18:15,23,24	6:10 45:16	approach	32:19 33:16	31:13,18	27:20 28:3	31:9 32:3	14:3,9,12
19:3,4,6,17	Agreements	7:22	35:13 37:8	32:1,4,6,10	28:4,18	33:6,23	16:1,5,19
25:11	4:24	approaches	38:14 40:19	32:14,18	44:22	35:3,21	18:21,24
abatements	air 25:18	17:7 27:6	41:20 42:23	33:1,7,10	budgetary	36:23 38:24	19:20 22:17
20:4,6 24:9	airlines 5:1	appropriati...	44:11	33:15,21,24	16:14	41:5	26:1,2,3
abetting	airport 5:2	4:13	Ayes 31:20	34:2,6,10	build 16:5,7	Chairman	27:10,11
25:19	7:7 45:16	approval 6:1	31:24 32:20	34:14,22	24:14 25:9	11:6 30:20	28:12
able 17:24	allow 36:21	approved	32:24 33:17	35:4,7,12	building	31:12 32:5	City's 7:3
18:11 28:2	38:22 39:15	6:12	33:20 34:16	35:19,22,23	14:19 25:17	33:9 34:1	26:7
ABM 8:14	40:1,8 41:3	area 23:2	34:20 35:14	36:3,8,12	burden 12:13	35:6 37:1	civilized
12:17	41:18 42:4	25:15	35:18 36:14	36:19,24	business 9:4,6	37:19 41:7	27:15
accept 18:1	44:8,19	Arrafe 7:18	36:18 37:9	37:2,6,14	9:10,10,14	42:8 43:21	CLARKE 1:9
accommoda...	alternative	7:20 8:13	37:13 38:15	37:16,20,24	9:16,17,18	changes 3:10	2:2 6:15
8:3	12:10 13:14	8:13 12:15	38:19 39:18	38:8,12,20	10:3 11:13	4:10 5:22	7:23 8:15
accountabil...	14:13 15:20	12:16 16:12	39:22 40:20	39:1,2,3,12	12:4 13:16	6:6	14:24 15:8
21:22	22:19 26:7	16:18	40:24 41:21	39:23 40:3	13:18	Chapter 3:22	16:2,11,17
accurately	alternatives	art 29:2,3	42:1,24	40:5,9,14	businesses	5:5,10	16:23 22:2
46:5	15:4 16:4	article 27:17	43:4 44:12	41:1,6,8,12	9:19 10:23	charge 12:3	22:7,11
achieve 26:12	16:21	asked 26:20	44:15	41:16 42:2	14:20	24:12	25:1 26:24
add 10:20	amended	asking 20:1		42:9,13,18	butchering	charged 12:3	27:3 29:24
12:20 16:13	35:22 37:17	21:4 28:23	B	42:22 43:21	7:19	charges 12:1	30:10,22
21:1	38:9	aspect 12:21	B 1:16	44:1,6,9,16	buy 23:11	charter 21:14	31:9,16,21
address 21:1	amending 3:3	aspects 13:5	back 7:8	45:2,15		21:23	32:12,21
adjourned	3:12,21 4:2	13:14	24:18 43:14	bills 1:18 2:8	C	cheap 24:15	33:13 34:8
45:18	5:4,9,14	assessments	balance 29:6	2:14,19	C 46:1,1	children	34:17 35:10
adjourns	amendment	22:22	ballot 26:2	6:22 10:12	call 23:2 27:5	15:16 17:17	35:15 36:6
31:6	30:18,20	Association	Bamon 17:2	BLACKW...	30:2	18:15 21:8	36:15 37:4
Administra...	31:13,18	8:21	17:2,4	1:10	Capital 2:21	27:8	37:10 38:2
6:18,21	32:1 33:7	assured 22:20	base 25:12	blindly 20:9	2:24 44:22	choosing	38:5,16
11:4	33:10,15,21	atmosphere	BASS 1:9	BLONDELL	carries 31:24	10:20	39:5,10,19
adopt 2:21,23	35:4,7,12	9:14	battle 14:17	1:10	32:24 33:20	Chorus 31:20	40:12,21
adopted	35:19 36:24	attempt	bay 24:19	Board 3:6,16	34:21 35:18	32:20 33:17	41:14,22
31:14,18	37:2,6,14	17:19	beg 29:9	4:6 5:18	36:18 37:13	34:16 35:14	42:16 43:1
32:2 33:11	39:6 43:5	audit 21:22	behalf 29:10	BOBBY 1:12	38:19 39:22	36:14 37:9	43:11,17
33:15,22	amendments	authorities	believe 15:10	body 6:20	40:24 42:1	38:15 39:18	44:4 45:12
35:8,12,20	30:15 39:3	28:9	30:14	born 23:2	44:15	40:20 41:21	clients 9:24
37:2,6,15	amounts 11:1	Authority 6:9	beneficial	bought 23:8	Carrington	42:24 44:12	climate 10:3
adopting 3:1	and/or 46:18	6:9,14	21:6	24:4	22:10,13,15	CINDY 1:9	close 20:19
advantage	ANGELA	11:23 13:22	benefit 17:16	brand 23:21	Center 13:4	circulated	21:1
11:10 14:18	46:11	Authorizati...	17:23,23	break 30:4,7	16:1	30:16	closed 10:19
afford 18:11	announcem...	3:5,14 4:4	18:15 21:3	Brian 7:21	certain 3:11	cities 12:2	20:17,18,18
19:23 23:11	45:13	5:16	25:10	brief 30:7	3:19,24,24	citizens 4:20	20:20
23:18 24:9	annual 15:15	authorize 3:6	benefits 18:1	45:10	4:11,20 5:3	11:18 18:4	closing 12:8
24:10,11,12	anybody	5:17	benefitting	bring 26:6	5:8,23	18:18	26:17
afternoon 2:3	21:13 23:12	authorized	21:16	bringing	Certainly	city 1:1,5 3:8	Coalition
8:10,17	30:3	6:11	better 15:24	20:10,12	17:17	5:1,7 6:2,3	17:11 22:17
17:6,8	anyway 8:7	authorizing	21:14	28:21	certification	6:13 9:1	code 3:4,13
22:13 25:3			bill 2:15,20	BROWN	46:15	10:7,22	3:22 4:3 5:5
			2:23 3:1,3		certify 46:3		

Committee of the Whole
June 10, 2015

Page 48

5:10,15 23:3 collect 11:7 Collectively 11:19 collects 11:9 color 17:18 20:18 21:9 come 16:3,20 17:6 19:16 24:18 coming 8:7 13:12 15:15 20:3 27:4 28:20 commences 31:7 Commerce 4:23 Committee 1:2 2:8 32:7 32:15 33:2 34:3,11,23 35:24 36:9 36:20 37:21 38:9,21 39:13,24 40:6,15 41:2,9,17 42:3,10,19 43:22 44:7 44:17 45:1 45:14,18 community 4:17 9:16 companies 10:14 12:12 company 8:20 12:9 competitive 13:17 concern 23:1 concludes 31:2 44:21 conditions 3:11,20 4:1 4:11,21 5:3 5:8,23 Condos 9:1 confusing 2:5 congestion 25:17 consider 6:19	constitute 6:20 constraints 16:14 construction 25:22 consumer 12:11 contained 46:5 continue 11:1 13:17 28:13 continued 21:10 continues 45:3 contribute 21:20 contributing 25:12 control 46:18 conversations 15:9 45:6 convey 10:1 convince 9:17 Cooperation 6:8,10 correct 46:8 cost 23:15 24:13 costs 11:16 12:11 28:6 Council 1:1,9 2:2 6:1,11 6:15 7:23 8:11,15 13:5 14:24 15:8 16:2 16:11,17,23 22:2,7,11 25:1 26:24 27:3 28:13 29:24 30:10 30:22 31:9 31:16,21 32:8,10,12 32:16,18,21 33:4,5,13 34:4,6,8,12 34:14,17 35:2,10,15 36:2,4,6,10 36:12,15,22	37:4,10,23 38:1,2,5,11 38:13,16,23 39:5,10,14 39:16,19 40:2,8,10 40:12,16,18 40:21 41:4 41:10,12,14 41:19,22 42:4,12,14 42:16,20,22 43:1,11,17 43:24 44:2 44:4,10,20 45:12 Councilman 1:11,11,12 1:12,13,13 1:14,14,15 19:8 30:17 30:19,23 31:10,11,15 32:3,5 33:6 33:9,23 34:1 35:3,6 35:21,23 36:23 37:1 37:16,18 38:24 39:2 40:3,5 41:5 41:7 42:5,7 43:3,4,11 43:13,16,18 43:20 Councilme... 8:11 COUNCIL... 1:9,10,10 1:15,16 counted 29:14 counterpro... 9:20 Court 46:12 covering 6:4 create 26:2 27:13 created 26:6 creating 9:10 creation 25:21 culture 14:21	current 12:23 currently 7:8 25:7 CURTIS 1:13 customers 12:3 D D 1:15 DARRELL 1:9 daughter 28:20 29:2 DAVID 1:14 dear 16:14 debt 28:17 deficit 19:21 DENNIS 1:14 density 25:20 Department 4:15 dependent 14:20 depravation 25:17 desperately 11:18 developer 25:9 developers 10:20 14:18 26:18 Development 4:17 developments 10:21 25:24 different 24:18 difficult 29:8 direct 46:18 Director 4:23 discussing 15:11 discussion 43:8 dislike 9:8,12 disparity 19:24 distributes 29:20 District 3:7 3:16,19 4:6 4:9 5:18,21 7:4,17 9:1	11:6 13:4 16:13 26:9 27:21,24 44:23 District's 28:4 diversificati... 23:24 diversity 24:3 dollars 12:6 21:7 29:13 door 24:6 downhill 23:6 drive 13:18 drug 23:6 due 11:8 Duly 32:11 33:12 34:7 35:9 36:5 37:3 38:4 39:9 40:11 41:13 42:15 44:3 E E 46:1 ease 26:7 easily 11:22 easy 15:14 ED 1:13 educate 15:16 education 3:6 3:16 4:6 5:18 26:11 29:1 effort 10:1 efforts 16:19 Either 24:9 Elementary 16:16 eliminate 19:2 employees 9:24 26:4 Employment 4:19 employs 11:20 empowers 26:12 encapsulates 13:10 Encourages 14:18	enforce 14:4 enforcement 11:3 enforces 14:5 enjoy 9:4 ensures 26:11 enter 4:24 entering 15:23 entertain 7:5 entire 27:20 entitled 3:5 3:14,23 4:4 5:6,11,16 equitable 18:17 especially 18:5 21:9 establishing 5:7,11 estate 3:8,18 4:8 5:6,7,20 10:11,12 11:14 13:1 13:7 17:13 18:16 27:10 et 9:24 14:21 everybody 8:17 evidence 46:4 excited 29:2 excuse 22:7,8 exist 9:14 existing 14:4 expanded 29:1 expect 18:9 expected 29:14 EZ 8:19 F F 46:1 fact 20:16 failing 26:16 fair 23:19 29:20 falling 23:22 favor 31:19 32:19 33:16 34:15 35:13 36:13 37:7 38:14 39:17 40:19 41:20	42:23 44:11 favorable 32:7,15 33:2 34:3 34:11,23 36:1,9,20 37:22 38:9 38:21 39:13 39:24 40:7 40:15 41:2 41:9,17 42:10,19 43:23 44:7 44:17 favorite 9:3 federal 13:3 fee 9:6 13:3 fees 10:8 13:2 14:1 figure 23:16 financial 6:3 26:8 find 9:8 20:7 finish 21:17 first 7:18 32:9 32:17 33:4 34:5,13 35:1 36:3 36:11 37:24 38:12 39:15 40:1,8,17 41:11 42:13 42:21 44:1 44:8 Fiscal 2:22,24 3:2 4:14 5:13 6:4,6 Five 6:2 five-minute 30:4 five-year-old 16:15 fix 24:3 focus 28:10 folks 24:2 follow 17:1 following 2:14 foot 20:1 foregoing 46:7,15 form 15:5 forth 7:9	fraction 12:1 friendly 11:13 friends 28:22 full 24:1 26:12 fully 46:5 fund 4:15 12:7 funding 26:22 28:14 44:23 further 3:5 3:15 4:5 5:17 11:10 32:8,16 34:4,12 36:1,10 37:22 38:10 39:14 40:16 41:10 42:11 42:20 43:23 FY16 44:22 G garage 16:5 general 4:14 6:18 12:21 12:22 generate 14:11,13 generating 13:14 gentrification 17:21 getting 20:3 21:3 give 8:1 13:13 19:23 20:22 20:23 26:20 42:5 43:18 given 6:18 21:7 gives 11:10 25:16 go 6:22 11:1 14:9 20:8 22:23 30:5 30:24 31:3 Gobreski 27:5,7,8 going 7:8,15 7:24 12:14 17:15 18:1
--	---	---	---	--	--	---	---

Committee of the Whole
June 10, 2015

Page 49

20:1 21:13 21:19 23:15 25:6 30:2,3 30:11 good 2:2 8:10 8:17 13:18 17:6,8 22:13 25:3 Goode 1:11 19:8 Graduate 23:2 granddaug... 15:22 grants 28:7 GREENLEE 1:11 31:15 guests 30:12 guys 15:18 27:22 28:23 29:5,11,17	HENON 1:12 high 9:13 14:16 26:10 28:20 high-rise 25:16 higher 25:19 highest 10:6 hit 29:12,22 Hold 30:22 30:23 home 18:2 23:8,9,14 homes 18:12 24:4 honest 13:18 hopefully 7:10,13 hoping 16:3 Hospital 23:2 hospitals 9:22 hotels 9:22 hour 11:24 13:22,23 45:5 house 23:10 23:11,12 24:9,10,12 24:13,20 houses 23:20 Housing 4:16 huge 11:1 Human 4:15 hundred 10:15,17 hurt 17:21 18:4	income 12:14 17:18,18 20:20 21:1 incomes 20:21 Incorporated 8:19 incorporati... 6:5 increase 3:9 10:9,10,11 11:10 13:6 13:24 14:2 14:8 17:13 17:20 18:2 18:6,8,18 19:12,13 29:15 increased 10:8 11:15 17:16 increases 9:5 9:6 10:6 13:16 increasing 9:19 11:16 industry 10:7 11:19,21 13:15 14:6 infested 23:7 insisting 16:6 instances 8:23 insurance 12:6,14 16:9 intellectual 26:13 Intergover... 6:8,10 International 5:2 introduced 6:24 invest 21:4 investing 21:5 involved 8:24 9:9 issue 10:1 15:11,15 issues 15:2,20 16:13	J JANNIE 1:10 January 6:12 job 25:21,24 29:8,9 jobs 4:18 10:22 11:18 13:18 25:22 26:6 Johnson 1:12 25:3,4 27:2 Jones 1:13 30:17,19 31:10,11 32:3,5 33:6 33:9,23 34:1 35:3,6 35:21,23 36:23 37:1 37:16,18 38:24 39:2 40:3,5 41:5 41:7 42:5,7 43:12,16,20 JR 1:11,13 June 1:6 6:24	K K 1:11 Kelvin 22:15 Kenae 17:2 KENYATTA 1:12 kids 17:22 21:15 kind 18:10 24:20 KING 46:11 know 2:4 7:7 7:19 8:6 11:7 12:9 15:8,14,17 23:14,15,17 27:12 29:5 29:7,8 known 7:6 45:15	L L 1:9,10 labor 7:2 24:15,15 lack 11:2	land 19:13,18 29:15 landscaping 4:18 late 2:4 Laverne 25:4 layoffs 11:21 leaders 9:18 learners 26:14 Lease 4:24 45:16 leave 30:3 38:6 Lee 16:16 left 18:13 23:3 legislation 7:6 let's 43:13 letters 28:21 Lewis 2:18,20 6:16 license 13:3 life 22:17 26:14 light 25:18 limited 14:18 Lipkin 7:21 list 10:3 little 2:3,5 live 15:24 23:1 25:15 27:14 lived 25:21 living 27:10 local 8:20 28:8 long 18:19 22:17 25:24 26:14,14 look 13:13 14:2 looking 14:12 29:1 LOOP 18:8 lose 18:2,12 loss 10:22 lost 14:17 lot 7:8 13:3 29:5 lot-cleaning 4:18 lots 10:18	love 27:10 low 17:18 20:20 21:1 28:18 lucky 23:9 25:20 M M 46:11 Madam 17:3 17:4 Madeline 17:9 major 11:16 making 3:10 4:10 5:22 manage 28:18 Manager 12:17 managing 9:16 marginal 20:21 MARIA 1:15 MARIAN 1:16 MARK 1:15 market 23:19 matter 46:7 Mayor 6:7,12 mean 20:2 24:2 means 46:17 measure 7:12 7:14 26:2 measures 6:20,21 Meeting 31:1 31:4,7 44:21 member 8:20 22:16 members 7:2 15:20 26:15 45:6 mentioned 13:10,12 message 11:12 meter 11:24 12:3 13:22 millage 22:23 million 13:24	14:2,8,11 14:12 27:24 28:1 29:12 29:23 millions 21:7 26:20 misery 21:2 mismanaged 26:21 misnomer 23:20 mission 26:9 mistake 30:24 moderate 17:18 money 11:22 18:10 20:24 21:13,13,20 26:21 months 25:22 morning 45:17 motion 30:17 31:24 32:4 32:24 33:7 33:20,24 34:20 35:4 35:18,22 36:18,24 37:13,16 38:19 39:1 39:7,22 40:3,24 41:6 42:1,5 43:13,18 44:15 move 23:10 30:20 31:13 32:5,8,16 33:9 34:1,4 34:12 35:6 35:23 36:1 36:10 37:1 37:20,22 38:10 39:2 39:14 40:5 40:16 41:7 41:10 42:9 42:11,20 43:21,23 45:1 moved 31:17	32:13 33:14 34:9 35:11 36:7 37:5 38:7 39:11 40:13 41:15 42:17 44:5 moving 23:13 23:14 multiple 29:21 music 29:2 N N 46:1 name 7:19 8:8,12,13 8:18 12:16 17:9 22:12 22:14,15 25:3 27:7 Nay 43:3 NBT 13:2 need 9:22 11:19,21 17:20 19:18 24:8 28:8 28:12,24 30:24 negative 9:13 10:2 11:17 negotiations 45:3 neighbor 24:17 neighborho... 20:20 23:21 23:24 24:1 25:6,8,18 neighborho... 16:6 neighbors 25:19 NEILSON 1:13 Net 3:23 never 23:3 new 9:5,10,19 23:14,21 26:4 newbies 20:2 20:3,12 nice 23:4 non-union 24:15
---	--	---	--	---	---	---	--	--	---

Committee of the Whole
June 10, 2015

Page 50

nonprofits 8:24 North 17:11 22:16 25:5 notable 21:11 Notary 46:12 notation 2:13 note 7:1 16:12 noted 46:4 notes 46:6 November 27:18 NRC 20:22 number 2:9 2:12 7:1 15:19 30:15 numbers 15:7 NWAC 25:5	6:19 opposed 31:22,23 32:22,23 33:18,19 34:18,19 35:16,17 36:16,17 37:11,12 38:17,18 39:20,21 40:22,23 41:23,24 43:2 44:13 44:14 options 29:7 29:19 order 9:23 26:13 ordinance 2:21,23 3:1 3:3,12,21 4:2,12,22 5:4,9,14 6:11 ordinarily 45:1 organized 7:2 overwhelmi... 10:2 owner 18:19	16:21 29:16 part 2:5 7:3 21:18 25:4 29:7,9 particular 7:12 particularly 15:2 parties 7:9 pass 12:10 pay 10:15,17 10:17 11:11 12:6 13:1 18:11 24:7 26:3 27:9 27:11,15 paying 14:7 14:15 18:14 19:17 PBT 13:2 Pennsylvania 1:5 6:8 people 8:3 11:20 17:17 17:19,21 19:16 20:10 20:18 24:4 24:11,16 25:14 percent 10:9 10:10,11,12 10:13,15,18 11:8,9 12:13,24 14:15 17:14 17:14 19:2 19:5,7 24:2 permit 14:1 32:9,17 33:4 34:5 34:13 36:3 36:11 37:24 38:11 40:17 41:11 42:12 42:21 44:1 44:8 personal 16:12 Philadelphia 1:1,5 3:4,7 3:9,13,17 3:19,22 4:3 4:7,9,19 5:2	5:5,10,15 5:19,21 6:2 6:4 8:21 9:11,15,18 10:8 11:2 12:18 15:23 23:13 26:10 27:9,21 place 11:13 18:3 22:20 plan 6:3 22:19 26:3 29:20 planning 26:1 please 2:18 8:8,16 22:11 29:22 29:22 30:4 30:13 37:7 42:5 43:19 45:7 plenty 29:19 ploy 23:23 point 7:15 10:4 28:2 pointers 12:20 points 13:9 political 27:23 population 21:3 25:20 portion 18:23 18:24 19:13 19:18 position 9:16 possibilities 15:3 possible 7:14 8:3 potential 26:13 preference 8:6 prepares 26:11 PRESENT 1:8 presented 12:19,21 19:8,9 President 1:9 2:2 6:15	7:23 8:11 8:15,19 14:24 15:8 16:2,11,17 16:23 22:2 22:7,11 25:1 26:24 27:3 29:24 30:10,22 31:9,16,21 32:12,21 33:13 34:8 34:17 35:10 35:15 36:6 36:15 37:4 37:10 38:2 38:5,16 39:5,10,19 40:12,21 41:14,22 42:16 43:1 43:11,17 44:4 45:12 previous 28:6 prior 14:10 priorities 27:16,16,23 29:6 Prisons 4:16 privilege 12:5 27:12 problem 21:19 problems 26:8 proceed 8:16 22:12 proceedings 46:4 process 7:11 productive 26:15 Profits 3:23 Program 2:21 4:19 project 16:7 25:7,14 properly 31:17 32:13 33:14 34:9 35:11 36:7 37:5 38:7 39:11 40:13	41:15 42:17 44:5 properties 19:14 26:19 property 20:8 25:19 26:18 29:16 proposal 13:20 proposed 6:5 6:21 17:13 proposing 13:6 provide 3:9 9:23 26:10 27:23 28:2 28:13 providing 6:1 16:6 public 2:7 6:19,22 7:5 9:12 12:9 12:22 27:9 30:24 31:3 31:4,6,6 44:21 46:12 pursuant 6:9 put 10:3 18:3 19:18 22:20 putting 26:1	4:19 read 2:18 reading 32:9 32:17 33:4 34:5,13 35:1 36:3 36:11,22 37:24 38:12 38:23 39:15 40:1,9,17 41:3,11,18 42:4,13,21 44:1,9,19 real 3:8,18 4:8 5:6,7,20 10:10,12 11:14 13:1 13:7 17:13 18:16 27:9 really 15:11 28:8,12,19 Realty 3:14 4:4 5:16 reasonable 9:23 reasons 28:14 received 26:22 receiving 18:14 recess 30:2 45:5,10,17 recognizes 30:16 31:10 32:3 33:6 33:23 35:3 35:21 36:23 38:24 41:5 recommend... 32:7,15 33:3 34:3 34:11,24 36:1,9,21 37:22 38:10 38:22 39:13 39:24 40:7 40:15 41:2 41:9,17 42:11,19 43:23 44:7 44:18 reconvene 30:12 Re-Entry	record 8:9 22:12 43:9 reduce 19:4,6 19:7,15 regarding 2:8 17:12 21:8 regulations 9:5 reliable 29:13 relocate 9:18 rely 10:23,24 remarks 8:1 reminder 29:18 remove 18:22 rental 25:9 renters 25:11 repaying 20:14 replace 10:21 replaced 11:23 reported 32:6 32:14 33:1 34:2,10,22 35:24 36:8 36:19 37:21 38:8,20 39:12,23 40:6,14 41:1,8,16 42:2,9,18 43:22 44:6 44:16 reporter 46:12,19 represent 17:10 reproduction 46:17 request 2:15 33:3 34:24 44:18 resident 22:17 residents 18:19,20 resolution 2:11,16,19 5:24,24 7:10 resolutions 1:20 2:14
---	---	--	--	---	--	--	--

Committee of the Whole
June 10, 2015

Page 51

respect 6:6 respects 7:5 15:3,15 45:14 responsibility 29:21 Restaurants 9:22 result 14:7 resumes 30:9 retail 14:21 Retain 18:21 18:23 retire 30:13 return 21:6 Returning 4:20 revenue 13:14,24 14:3,8 reverse 23:23 Revised 6:2 revising 3:24 REYNOLDS 1:10 rid 21:21 right 12:13 16:4,17 28:11,21 30:10 39:4 43:15 rising 27:12 28:5 River 9:1 Room 1:5 RPR 46:11 rule 36:21 38:22 44:8 44:18 rules 14:4 32:8,16 33:3 34:4 34:12,24 36:2,10 37:23 38:11 39:14 40:1 40:8,16 41:3,10,18 42:3,12,20 43:24	sale 18:13 saying 37:8 school 3:7,16 3:18 4:6,8 5:18,20 7:4 7:16 15:23 16:13,16 17:19,20 18:22 21:20 26:9,21 27:18,20,21 27:24 28:3 28:4,20 44:22 schools 12:7 15:24 20:16 20:17,19 21:1,14,23 21:23 26:17 27:9,16,19 28:14,15,24 science 29:1 scored 21:12 second 12:18 30:23 31:15 33:14 38:3 39:8 second-story 24:19 seconded 31:17 32:11 32:13 33:12 34:7,9 35:9 35:11 36:5 36:7 37:3,5 38:4,7 39:9 39:11 40:11 40:13 41:13 41:15 42:15 42:17 44:3 44:5 Secondly 9:12 19:20 Section 3:4 3:13 4:3 5:15 sectors 29:21 see 13:23 15:24 24:3 27:22 seek 26:6 sends 11:12 senior 18:4	18:18 September 16:18 serious 10:1 seriously 18:4 service 9:21 services 4:15 8:14 10:23 12:17 servicing 5:1 session 32:10 32:18 33:5 34:6,14 35:1 36:4 36:12,22 38:1,13,23 39:16 40:2 40:9,18 41:4,12,19 42:4,14,22 44:2,9,20 set 4:9 5:21 22:23 seven 9:7 10:5 19:10 sewer 10:12 13:2 share 15:6 sheriff 18:13 Shikomba 17:2,3,4,9 17:10 short 20:5 25:21 show 20:11 20:13 shown 21:8 shows 19:20 signify 37:7 simply 25:16 sir 15:1 22:9 25:2 six 2:22 25:21 sixth 9:7 slated 12:7 social 26:13 society 26:15 27:15 soda 29:17 sodas 29:18 solid 29:13 solutions 15:16	somebody 24:6 son 16:15 soon 7:14 20:6 sorry 2:3 17:3 sound 10:2 spaces 10:21 speak 12:12 Spear 7:21 8:10,12,17 8:18 15:6 15:21 16:3 specifically 26:5 split 10:16 sponsor 2:15 squander 20:24 squeeze 19:21 SQUILLA 1:15 SRC 20:23 21:8,21 staff 28:10 stakeholders 45:4 stand 20:9 45:16 start 7:11,24 9:19 30:11 43:12,13 started 27:18 starting 16:15 state 8:8 12:23 13:3 22:11 28:8 28:13 statement 12:19 status 45:5 stay 7:13 stenographic 46:6 step 29:22 Steve 12:15 13:10,12 straight 20:23 street 24:7 stressed 21:2 structural	28:5 students 26:12 29:10 submitted 6:7 suffering 28:19 suggest 19:3 21:17 suggestion 13:11,16 supervision 46:19 supply 27:20 support 4:17 16:19 supposed 20:10 sure 8:2 15:19 Susan 27:5,7 suspended 32:9,17 33:4 34:5 34:13 36:2 36:11 37:23 38:11 39:15 40:8,17 41:11 42:12 42:21 43:24 suspension 34:24 36:21 38:22 40:1 41:3,18 42:3 44:8 44:19 system 15:23 18:16 26:21 systematica... 28:16	3:24 4:5,7 4:10 5:7,8 5:11,17,19 5:22 9:5 10:5,10,11 10:12,13,16 11:10 12:4 12:4,5,24 13:1,2,14 13:16,20 14:4 15:11 16:21 18:2 18:6,15,23 18:24 19:3 19:4,6,13 19:16 20:4 20:6,7 23:17 25:10 25:12 27:10 29:16,16,17 taxation 5:12 taxed 10:7 14:16 24:5 taxes 5:6 9:13 9:20 10:8 10:14,22 11:1,8,12 11:14 12:14 13:3,4,6,8 14:7,10,14 15:4 16:8 17:16,20 18:8,12,14 18:16,18 19:15,17 27:13 taxing 22:19 teachers 29:10 technical 3:10 4:10 5:22 tell 20:22 ten-year 25:10 tenants 10:16 term 25:24 terms 3:11,20 4:1,11,20 5:3,8,23 testifying 9:4 9:8,12 22:9 testimony	6:17,22 7:5 7:16,24 8:16 15:1 16:24 22:3 25:2 27:1 30:1 thank 6:15,16 7:17 8:4,5,7 8:7 12:15 14:23,24 16:22,24 17:1 22:1,2 24:21 25:1 26:23,24 27:2 29:24 30:13,14,19 31:2,11 32:12 33:13 34:8,20 36:6 37:4 37:18 38:5 39:10 40:12 41:14 42:7 42:16 44:4 44:23 45:8 Thanks 27:3 thing 9:3 25:6 27:14 things 2:4 think 11:8 21:24 23:19 thousand 24:11 three 11:4,16 13:6 24:18 27:8 three-minute 8:2 time 7:11,15 18:19 30:7 43:8 45:10 timeline 8:2 times 24:18 tired 20:9,14 20:16 21:15 21:15 titles 2:19 today 16:10 23:10 29:18 toilet 21:14 tomorrow 45:17 Toni 17:2,4	top 13:1 14:14 totally 24:7 tourism 14:21 town 20:8 traffic 25:17 transactions 5:12 transcript 46:8,16 transfer 4:13 trouble 28:15 true 27:13 try 9:17 19:21 trying 13:11 16:20 Tsegaye 7:19 8:13 12:16 tuned 7:13 two 19:9 21:21 U U&O 13:1,7 29:16 unabated 18:19 uncollected 11:2 underfunded 28:16 understand 12:23 16:2 16:11,23 unfair 24:7 Unfortunat... 9:6 units 25:9 unpaid 14:10 use 3:14,17 4:4,7,24 5:16,19 10:13,15 11:14 12:4 17:19 45:16 utilities 12:5 V value 23:19 various 6:19 7:9 vehemently
--	--	--	---	--	--	--	--

Committee of the Whole
June 10, 2015

Page 52

18:17	26:20	2:9 3:1 35:5	4:3 5:15	60 11:9			
Vice 11:6	written 15:1	35:7,12,19	19146 23:3	60s 23:5,5			
visitors 30:12	15:5 28:22	35:22,24	1992 6:12	65-year-old			
	28:23	36:8,19		9:17			
<u>W</u>		150165 1:18	<u>2</u>				
W 1:11	<u>X</u>	2:9 3:3	2:09 1:6	<u>7</u>			
Wage 3:23		36:24 37:2	2:53 30:9	70 11:9 23:5			
walking	<u>Y</u>	37:6,14,17	20 12:24				
23:12	Yeah 15:21	37:20 38:8	14:11,15	<u>8</u>			
walloped	year 3:2 4:14	38:20	19:7 28:1	8 10:12			
11:16	5:13 6:3,6	150166 1:19	2001 21:11	80s 23:5			
want 2:13	9:7 13:7	2:10,16	2007 10:7	85 24:2 27:23			
16:5 19:1,2	17:15 19:5	3:12	2015 1:6 6:6				
19:11 20:22	19:7 24:17	150167 1:19	6:24	<u>9</u>			
20:23 21:12	25:22 27:18	2:10 3:21	2016 2:24 3:2	9:00 45:17			
21:22 29:20	27:20,24	39:1,3,7,12	4:14 5:13	90 11:8			
30:3 43:5	29:3	39:23	6:4 17:14				
45:12	years 2:22	150179 1:20	2016-2021				
wanted 12:20	6:4 10:5	2:12,17	2:22				
wants 15:24	11:5 14:10	5:24	2020 6:5				
Washington	19:6,7,9,10	150438 1:19	2401 25:8				
17:11 22:16	21:5 22:21	2:10,16 4:2	25 10:13				
25:5,8	24:4 28:16	150471 1:19	250 23:16				
wasn't 28:12	29:4	2:10,16	254 18:9				
water 10:11	young 24:1	4:12					
13:2		150531 1:19	<u>3</u>				
way 17:20	<u>Z</u>	2:10 4:22	3 6:12,24				
21:19 24:3	ZIP 23:3	6:23 45:2	10:10 11:24				
43:14		45:15	13:22				
ways 26:7	<u>0</u>	150533 1:19	3,000 11:20				
we're 8:19		2:11 5:4	3.5 14:2				
13:10,11	<u>1</u>	6:23 17:12	3:58 45:18				
16:3 30:3	1 13:23 18:9	40:4,6,14	300 23:16				
we've 11:3	10 1:6 19:5,5	41:1	31 14:12				
Wednesday	10-year 19:3	150534 1:19	33 10:9				
1:6	100 10:11	2:11 5:9					
went 23:6	19:2	6:23 41:6,8	<u>4</u>				
West 9:1	105 29:12,23	41:16 42:2	4 13:24 14:8				
white 24:1	113 25:9	150535 1:19	17:14				
WILLIAM	125,000 23:9	2:11 5:14	400 1:5				
1:11	125,000-dol...	6:23 42:6,9	400,000				
WILSON	23:12	42:18 43:12	23:16,23				
1:11	150162 1:18	43:14,17,19	24:7,12,13				
wind 2:4	2:9,20	43:22 44:6	400,000-dol...				
window 24:19	30:18 31:14	44:16	24:20				
witness 7:22	31:18 32:1	1563-A 6:13					
17:7 27:6,6	32:4,6,14	160 27:19	<u>5</u>				
Witnesses	33:1	28:3	5 17:14 19:6				
7:22	150163 1:18	19-1200 5:10	5,000 23:8				
work 24:19	2:9,23 33:8	19-1300 5:5	5,784 18:9				
working 9:9	33:10,15,21	19-1500 3:22	50 12:13				
11:4 29:11	33:24 34:2	19-1801 3:4	50s 23:4				
world 24:16	34:10,22	19-1806 3:13					
worth 23:9,22	150164 1:18		<u>6</u>				